Ao\" K'“"Qv Human Services Commission Meeting

£ Am/) Z Date: December 13, 2022

0 o _

4 Time: 6:30 p.m.

qu'Ne<oe Place: Virtual Zoom Meeting -
Webinar ID: https://kirklandwa-
gov.zoom.us/j/95665567758pwd=eEhGaEYraThBbnlhUTdzUWVCa3c¢5dz09
Passcode: 822788

The commission is directed by the City Council to advise the Parks and Community Services Department, City Manager, and City
Council in leading the City’s efforts to support a socially sustainable community through health and human services and programs that
fulfill the basic needs of all people and enhance the quality of life in our city now and into the future.

AGENDA
1. CALL TO ORDER
2. ROLL CALL
3. LAND ACKOWLEDGMENT

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
a. November 22, 2022

5. ITEMS FROM THE AUDIENCE

6. BUSINESS ITEMS
a. Teen Union Building (KTUB) Proposal Review

8. COMMUNICATIONS
a. Commissioner Reports
b. Staff Reports and Announcements

9. ADJOURNMENT

Upcoming Commission Activities:

January 24, 2023 — Regular Meeting

Alternate Formats: Persons with disabilities may request materials in alternative formats. Persons with hearing impairments may access the
Washington State Telecommunications Relay Service at 711.

Title VI: Kirkland’s policy is to fully comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act by prohibiting discrimination against any person on the basis of
race, color, national origin or sex in the provision of benefits and services resulting from its programs and activities. Any person who believes
his/her Title VI protection has been violated, may file a complaint with the City.

To request an alternate format, file a complaint or for questions about Kirkland’s Title VI Program, contact the Title VI Coordinator at 425-587-
3011 or titlevicoordinator@kirklandwa.gov.

The City of Kirkland strives to accommodate people with disabilities. Please contact the City Clerk’s Office at 425.587.3190, or for TTY Services call
425.587.3111 (by noon the work day prior to the meeting) if we can be of assistance. If you should experience difficulty hearing the proceedings,
please bring this to the attention of the Chairperson by raising your hand.


mailto:titlevicoordinator@kirklandwa.gov
https://kirklandwa-gov.zoom.us/j/95665567758?pwd=eEhGaEYraThBbnlhUTdzUWVCa3c5dz09
https://kirklandwa-gov.zoom.us/j/95665567758?pwd=eEhGaEYraThBbnlhUTdzUWVCa3c5dz09

Human Services Commission Meeting:
11/22/2022

Agenda: Approval of Minutes

Item #:4a

CITY OF KIRKLAND

HUMAN SERVICES COMMISSION
Minutes Commission Regular Meeting
November 22, 2022

1. CALL TO ORDER
Meeting was called to order at 6:35 pm by Chair Gildas Cheung

2. ROLL CALL

Members Present: Commissioners, Jonathan Stutz, Gabriella Lopez Vazquez, Marjorie Carlson,
Vice Chair Jory Hamilton, and Chair Gildas Cheung.

Commissioner Michelle Alten-Kahler joined at 6:45pm
Staff Present: Jen Boone, Human Services Manager, Amanda Judd, Human Services Coordinator

Meeting Recorder: Regi Schubiger, Youth Services Coordinator

3. LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Vice Chair Jory Hamilton read the Local Land Acknowledgement. Commissioner Jonathan Stutz
will read the acknowledgement for the next meeting on December 13th.

4. APPROVE MINUTES

Chair Gildas Cheung requested a motion to approve the November 1, 2022 minutes. Motion
made by Commissioner Jonathan Stutz and seconded by Marjorie Carlson.

Motioned carried (Yes: 5 No: 0).

5. ITEMS FROM THE AUDIENCE

None

6. BUSINESS ITEMS
a. DEIB Update



DEIB Manager Erika Mascorro introduced herself and presented an update on the 5 Year
DEIB Roadmap.

b. 2023-24 Human Services Grant Recommendations Update

Jen shared that Council is recommending funding for all three Options (A, B, and C).
Commissioner Gaby Lopez proposed sending a thank you letter to City Council from HSC
signed by Chair Gildas Cheung.

c. Teen Union Building (KTUB) Proposal Update

Jen shared that the external proposals and City proposal are still in process and under
review. Plan is to host a special meeting on Dec 13 to receive feedback from the
Commission about all KTUB proposals.

7. COMMUNICATIONS
a. Reports

Jen — recruitment for vacant commission seats, interviews on Dec 13 on board by
January meeting; 2023 meeting format — first quarter virtual and then reassess

8. ADJOURNMENT

Chair Gildas Cheung requested a motion to adjourn. Moved by Commissioner Marjorie Carlson
and seconded by Commissioner Jonathan Stutz. The meeting was adjourned at 8:20 p.m.



Human Services Commission Meeting:
12/13/2022

Agenda: KTUB Proposal Update

Item #:6a

o:@:"g CITY OF KIRKLAND

A
§ 2=/ % Department of Parks & Community Services
4 *& 123 Fifth Ave, Kirkland, WA 98033 - 425.587.3300
T www.kirklandwa.gov
MEMORANDUM
To: Human Services Commission
From: Lynn Zwaagstra, Director
Jen Boone, Human Services Manager
Antoinette Smith, Human Services Coordinator - Equity
Regi Schubiger, Youth Services Coordinator
Date: December 13, 2022
Subject: Kirkland Teen Union Building (KTUB) Proposals
RECOMMENDATION:

The Human Services Commission review and provide feedback on the proposed services levels
for the external proposals and City proposal.

BACKGROUND DISCUSSION:

At its November 1, 2022 Human Services Commission meeting, staff presented the City’s vision
for KTUB and provided an overview of the Fall 2022 RFP (request for proposal) process.

Five external proposals were received through the RFP process. The submitting agencies were
Boys and Girls Club, Kamp, Studio East, Washington Autism Alliance, and the YMCA. A staff
evaluation team comprised of Parks and Community Services staff and the DEIB Manager
completed a written evaluation of the proposals and selected two agencies to interview.

Boys and Girls Club and the YMCA participated in a presentation with Q&A and an interview
about each agency’s vision and service model for KTUB.

At its December 13, 2022 meeting, staff will seek feedback from the Commission through
presenting a service level comparison for both external proposals and the City’s proposal.
Attachment A includes a copy of the Boys and Girls Club proposal. Attachment B includes a copy
of the YMCA proposal.

Attachment A — Boys and Girls Club Proposal
Attachment B — YMCA KTUB Proposal


https://www.kirklandwa.gov/files/sharedassets/public/parks-amp-comm-services/human-services/hsc-files/2022-november-1-hsc-meeting.pdf

ATTACHMENT A

BOYS & GIRLS CLUBS
OF KING COUNTY

Organizational Overview

CONTACT INFORMATION

Boys & Girls Clubs of King County

220 W. Mercer, Suite 410

Seattle, WA 98109

(206) 436-8100

Primary Contact: Melissa Pederson, 509-869-8016, mpederson@ positiveplace.org

For over 75 years, Boys & Girls Clubs of King County has been opening doors of opportunity and
preparing young people for a great future. We see possibility in every young person and are committed
to being a voice for all youth in King County.

Here in King County We have been serving boys and girls, even under the name “The Boys Club”, since
the mid-1940s. Today We serve kids age 3-21, with a wide range of needs and interests. Understanding
that We all grow and learn at different paces; our programs respond to the diverse needs across our
community. We are continually adapting our offerings and services to best match the evolving needs of
youth throughout our community.

OUR MISSION
To inspire & enable all young people, especially those who need us most, to reach their full potential as
productive, responsible, and caring citizens.

OUR VISION To provide a world-class Club Experience that assures success is within reach of every young
person who enters our doors, with all members on track to graduate from high school with a plan for
the future, demonstrating good character and citizenship, and living a healthy lifestyle.

OUR IMPACT
Our award-winning, innovative programs empower youth to excel in school, become good citizens, and
lead healthy, productive lives. We do whatever it takes to build great futures.

BY THE NUMBERS
31 Clubs in greater Seattle
9,917 registered Club members

SCHOOL YEAR SUMMER
1,894 Average daily attendance 1,131 average daily attendance
316,311 snacks and meals served 72,550 snacks served



BOYS & GIRLS CLUBS
OF KING COUNTY

At Boys & Girls Clubs of King County, we do whatever it takes to support every kid who walks through
our doors. We have prioritized removing barriers that may hinder youth from being able to access our
Clubs. We continued to provide scholarships for all who needed them, local partners like Microsoft
helped provide needed transportation to Clubs, we are opening a new Club in the Highline School
District, all to be available for youth in our community. We do so while investing in and working toward
becoming an anti-racist organization so that all feel safe and welcome in our Clubs. Having a safe place
to go, guided mentorship, and life-enhancing programs enables our members to embrace confidence
and become the leaders of tomorrow.

With over 500+ years of combined youth development expertise, our dedicated staff have made Boys &
Girls Clubs of King County a respected leader in the Youth Development sector. Their dedication and
expertise have allowed us to create tailored, youth informed programing that directly meets the needs
of our members, including our new mental Wellness programming.

Over the past several years we have partnered with local mental health experts to learn about how to
support the mental Wellness of our members. We have provided programs ranging from research-based
mindfulness and movement to professional Youth Clinical Therapists sessions to youth therapeutic
workshops. We have witnessed youth who are experiencing distress and know families are frustrated by
the lack of available youth counseling services. In response to the needs of our youth, we are working to
build our Mental Wellness Initiative. The initiative will include a behavioral health specialist for each
Club, youth focused Clinicians to serve youth who need one on one support, a director to lead the
Initiative and a Behavioral Health Advisory Board.

Our Mental Wellness Initiative is just one example of our community-based programming informed by
youth voice. We have further prioritized offering a Well-rounded experience for each young person
through a focus on academic excellence, health and Wellness, and service and leadership by creating
youth-informed programs. Our new Teen Advisory Board has been created to ensure that youth voice
stays front and center in all We do. Club members represent the next generation of social change-
makers, entrepreneurs, and innovators. We strive to ensure every kid has the resources and support
systems to reach their potential.

Generous funders, corporate partners, and individuals are how we can continue to provide youth-
centered, tailored, programming for tomorrow’s leaders.

Thank you for this opportunity to submit a proposal to lease and run programming at the Kirkland Teen
Union Building.

Melissa Pederson Kendrick Davis
Director of Institutional Giving Area Director — Eastside Clubs
mpederson@positiveplace.org kpittman@positiveplace.org



mailto:mpederson@positiveplace.org

BOYS & GIRLS CLUBS
OF KING COUNTY

Understanding of The City of Kirkland’s Vision for the KTUB

REACHING MORE YOUTH - We believe every young person in our community is already great. We know
that access to our Clubs creates opportunities for great futures. Boys & Girls Clubs of King County has a
long history of partnering with cities, counties and communities to bring high level programming to the
Youth in the area. After touring KTUB with representatives from the Kirkland Boys & Girls Club, Federal
Way Teen Center and YouthForce We understand the vision that the City of Kirkland has for the building
- teens need a safe and welcoming place to hang out after school or on weekends; a place to develop
relationships with police, community members, and the business community.

We also understand that including the Youth Voice is the most important factor when developing
programming. Everything we do at our Clubs is in partnership with the Youth that attend and making
certain it is fun, engaging and challenging so they continue to come back to where they know their
voices are heard and their needs are met. Our programming allows kids to be themselves and express
themselves whether it be through music, art, sports and more.

Launched earlier this year, the Teen Advisory Board is made up of 16 members from across the county.
Teens have the opportunity to connect with one another and play an active role in steering our Teen
programming. They also provide youth voice to the organization’s advocacy projects. To date they have
helped plan the Earth Day celebration, One Seattle Day of Service and the Be You Teen Late Night. This
fall they will be partnering with King County Library for voter registration events.

We have also committed as an organization to prioritize inclusive and diverse programming. Our
Program Directors are hired from the communities we represent to ensure programming is relevant.
Boys & Girls Clubs of King County has also invested in our workforce by Increased compensation for our
frontline team and created pathways to encourage promotion from within. We have focused on social
emotional learning and mental health supports. Including but not limited to employee assistance
programs, peace circles, targeted discussions, fun/laughter and a sense of community.

Our Clubs are a part of the community and partnership is key. Whether it is working with community
partners to host a Back to School event or inviting elected officials for Club tours, our staff is trained in
making sure we are a part of the community fabric. The more we are involved with local businesses, civil
services and public services the better the social environment for the Youth that attend the Clubs. These
collaborations also help to promote the positive image of the city, county and state.

We have moved to a model of Community Centric Fundraising which We know has been hard for some
of our donors and partners but we are committed to being “grounded in equity and social justice,
prioritize the entire community over individual organizations, foster a sense of belonging and
interdependence, present our work not as individual transactions but holistically, and encourage mutual
support between nonprofits.”



BOYS & GIRLS CLUBS
OF KING COUNTY

Program and Service Plan for a Typical Week During the Academic Year

3:00 -3:45p: Teens arrive, check in, get snack, participate in low-structure drop in activities like foosball,
card games, hanging out, or homework help

3:45 — 4:45p: 1st Rotation. Teens can work a shift in the Keystone Café, do yoga, homework, self-guided
art projects, or take part in a YouthForce led program (financial literacy, college/career prep, or a job
fair)

4:45 — 5:00p: Club Meeting. This is where teens learn more about upcoming events or announcements.
Also, a time to do formal recognition for birthdays, academic and athletic achievements.

5:00 — 6:00p: 2nd Rotation. Our targeted programs are usually running at this time. SMART Girls, LEGO
First, Keystone & Torch Club meetings and podcasting.

6:00 — 6:30p: Teens have some free time at the end of the day. We also use this time to connect with
families at pickup as Well as continue to build positive, supportive relationships with Club members.

7:00 — 10:00p: #WeOwnFriday Teen Event. The focus of #WeOwnFriday is attracting and engaging new,
non-Club teens through events, meetups and programs. The goal of them is to bring new teens into full
membership at KTUB

Program and service plan for a typical Week during the summer

9:00am-4:00pm: Camp activities. It is our goal to plan activities that represent the core impact areas of
the Boys & Girls Club: Academic Success, Healthy Lifestyles, and Good Character & Citizenship. We will
have activities planned both inside and outside every day.

4:00pm-6:00p: Teens have some free time at the end of the day

Addressing summer learning loss: We will also be focusing a portion of each day on Summer Brain Gain,
a daily program focusing on 20 minutes of reading, 20 minutes writing, 20 minutes of math games, and
20 minutes of Social-Emotional Learning. This program is aimed to prevent summer learning loss with
fun, educational activities.



BOYS & GIRLS CLUBS
OF KING COUNTY

List of Anticipated Annual Programs and Services Broken Down by Descriptive
Categories

The Club is a space within Boys & Girls Clubs created especially for teens, apart from the younger kids. It
is a safe place, where they can be themselves without feeling the pressure of being judged. At the Club,
teens have access to resources and experiences that expose them to a world of opportunities. Plus, The
Club is a comfortable place to hang out with friends, connect with caring mentors, and participate in fun
activities like sports, arts, and volunteerism.

CHARACTER AND LEADERSHIP

These programs help youth become responsible, caring citizens and acquire skills to participate the
democratic process. Program participants also develop leadership skills and gain opportunities for
planning, decision-making, contributing to Club and community and celebrating our national heritage.

Keystone

Keystone Clubs provide leadership development opportunities for young people ages 14 to 18. Youth
participate in activities in three focus areas: academic success, career preparation and community
service. With the guidance of an adult advisor, Keystone Clubs aim to have a positive impact on
members, the Club and community.

Youth of the Year

Youth of the Year is Boys & Girls Clubs of America’s premier recognition program. It is our signature
effort to foster a new generation of leaders, fully prepared to live and lead in a diverse, global and
integrated world economy.

Torch Club

Torch Clubs are chartered, small-group leadership and service Clubs for boys and girls ages 11 to 13. A
Torch Club is a powerful vehicle that helps Club staff meet the special character development needs of
younger adolescents at a critical stage in their life.

SPORTS & RECREATION PROGRAMS
These Club programs help develop physical fitness, reduce stress and promote a positive use of leisure
time, appreciation for the environment and interpersonal skills.

Triple Play

Triple Play is a comprehensive health and Wellness program. It strives to improve the overall health of
Club members ages 6-18 by increasing daily physical activity, teaching them about good nutrition and
helping them develop healthy relationships.



BOYS & GIRLS CLUBS
OF KING COUNTY

Fun at Bat
Fun at Bat is an entry-level bat-and-ball program for kids with an emphasis on character development,
functional movement, active play and fun.

DEVELOPING GLOBALLY COMPETITIVE GRADUATES
These programs are designed to ensure that all Club members graduate from high school on time, ready
for a post-secondary education and a 21st-century career.

Power Hour

Power Hour: Making Minutes Count provides Club professionals with the strategies, activities, resources
and information to create an engaging homework help and tutoring program that encourages Club
members of every age to become self-directed learners.

Project Learn
Project Learn reinforces the academic enrichment and school engagement of young people during the
time they spend at the Club.

Summer Brain Game

Summer Brain Gain is comprised of one-Week modules with fun, themed activities for elementary
school, middle school and high school students that are aligned with common core anchor standards. In
addition, Summer Brain Gain: Read!, a literacy program, complements the larger Summer Brain Gain
curriculum.

The Computer Science Pathway

The Computer Science Pathway, a key component of Boys & Girls Clubs’ Education & STEM
programming, invites youth and teens on a journey from their first encounter with code to creative
computing.

GIVING KIDS A VOICE THROUGH THE ARTS
These programs are designed to foster creativity in young people, and give them outlets for self-
expression. From photography to hip-hop, our arts programs have something that will inspire everyone

Image Makers

ImageMakers is a year-round program that helps Club members ages 6-18 learn the art and science of
photography through multiple categories: Culture and Tradition, Portraits, Nature and Surroundings,
Fashion and Style, and Editing and Filter. Photographs are displayed at local and regional exhibits around
the world.

Music Makers
MusicMakers inspires young people to produce music, and to create their life’s soundtrack.



BOYS & GIRLS CLUBS
OF KING COUNTY

National Fine Arts Exhibit

This year-round program encourages artistic expression among Club members ages 6 to 18 through
drawing, painting, printmaking, collage, mixed media and sculpture displayed at local and regional
exhibits.

HEALTH AND WELLNESS PROGRAMS

These programs develop young people’s capacity to engage in positive behaviors to nurture their Well-
being, set personal goals and grow into self-sufficient adults.

SMART Girls
SMART Girls provides health, fitness, prevention/education and self-esteem enhancement for girls ages
8to1l7.

Healthy Habits
Healthy Habits emphasizes good nutrition, regular physical activity and improved overall Well-being.

WORKFORCE READINESS
To help young people meet the workforce challenges of tomorrow, they need safe spaces, positive
mentorship and work experiences today. At Boys & Girls Clubs, we allow kids and teens to:

e Explore their interests and passions
e Develop their employability skills

e Apply their knowledge to real-world work experiences

Career Launch

CareerlLaunch prepares teens for the world of careers and work. Through CareerLaunch, Club teens 13-
18 years old embark on a journey to explore possible vocations, make sound educational decisions and
find success in the world of work.

diplomas2Degrees

diplomas2Degrees (d2D), a college readiness program, provides a range of services to guide Club
members as they work toward high school graduation and prepare for post-secondary education and
career success.

Money Matters

Money Matters promotes financial responsibility and independence among Club members ages 13 to
18. Participants learn how to manage a checking account, create a budget, save and invest, start small
businesses and pay for college.



BOYS & GIRLS CLUBS
OF KING COUNTY

YOUTHFORCE — WORKFORCE READINESS

Under the leadership of the YouthForce Executive Director, BGCKC’s YouthForce career development
program equips hundreds of youth ages 14-21 each year with the resources and foundation needed to
successfully enter the workforce and become economically self-sufficient. Developed as an independent
organization in 1998 to help young people gain the skills and experience to successfully enter the
workplace, YouthForce joined forces with BGCKC in 2008, and brings more than 20 years of experience
and programming tailored to the needs of King County youth.

Staffing Plan Including Necessary Skills, Credentials, and Experience of Each Staff
Member

Teen Director

Oversees the Teen Drop-in Center and teen targeted programs. Ensures an outcome driven club
experience in our three priority areas: Academic Success, Good Character and Citizenship and Healthy
Lifestyles. Leads a broad range of quality youth development programs which promote physical activity,
pro-social engagement, community service, career and academic development. Ensures teen staff
implement programs which utilize the 5 Key Elements of Youth Development:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

e Ensures program equipment and areas are maintained on a daily basis.

e Researches best practice programs and proven methods for teen development both within Boys
& Girls Clubs Movement and throughout the field of Youth Development.

e Using the Formula for Impact (FFl), Youth Program Quality Assessment (YPQA), and other
assessment/evaluations/surveys — to plan, develop, implement and evaluate programs, services
and activities in accordance with our mission that properly prepare youth for success in 3
primary focus areas: 1) Academic Success, 2) Good Character & Citizenship and 3) Healthy
Lifestyle.

e Plans and ensures proper implementation and facilitation of BGCA programing.

e Ensures overall safety of teens attending the Teen Center. Trains new staff on safety and
ensures compliance with safety policies for the Teen Center.

e Maintains proper documentation of club members including tracking priority outcomes,
duration and frequency of attendance, incidents, etc.

e Administrative and fiscal functions including, overseeing budget, record keeping, reporting, data
entry, data evaluation, program management, and attention to impact-measurement initiatives,
program reports and grant writing support and management.

e Leads marketing and advertisement of teen programs to meet club or regional daily attendance
goals within specified time frames.

e Participates in special programs, events and other projects as directed by Club Director or
Operations Director.



BOYS & GIRLS CLUBS
OF KING COUNTY

QUALIFICATIONS, KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, AND ABILITIES

e BA Degree in applicable field, (7+ years’ experience with relevant certifications may substitute
for college experience in some cases).

e 2+ years’ staff management experience including hiring, training, supervising staff (or successful
evidence of transferrable skills).

e 5S+years working within a youth development program or agency in a leadership role (i.e.
program lead/manager/director), Teen and Boys & Girls Club experience preferred.

e Experience mentoring, modeling and guiding youth utilizing strengths-based techniques.

e Fiscal management experience including creating and maintaining program budgets.

e Understands relevant youth development principles that apply to teens from diverse
populations and situations including the ability to motivate teens in a positive way.

e Strong customer relations skills, ability to remain calm under in stressful situation and maintain
strict confidentiality.

e Propose, learn, support and implement new ideas for the good of the Club.

e Excellent verbal and written communication and experience with Microsoft Office Suite and
database knowledge.

LICENSE/CERTIFICATE REQUIREMENTS:

e A Current Driver License, Satisfactory Motor Vehicle Record as determined by BGCKC Vehicle
Loss Prevention Program, (must be 21 years old or older to drive Club owned and operated
vehicles).

e Current CPR and First Aid Certifications or ability to complete within 30 days of employment.

Youth Development Professional

A Youth Development Professional (YDP) supports Club Leadership in providing an Outcome Driven Club
Experience in a variety of programming areas including: Gym, Games Room, Learning Center, Computer
Lab, Kitchen, Club Entry, and other targeted programming areas. The majority of responsibilities are
working directly with youth, ensuring their safety, Well-being and development through interactive play
and other activities as directed.

The YDP is self-motivated, mature, energetic, and able to maintain clear and healthy boundaries with
club members, parents and staff; able to communicate and interact with youth in a way that is age
appropriate, motivational and positive in nature. The YDP must be flexible, have the ability to adapt to a
work environment which changes often, must remain calm and solve problems in stressful situations.
The YDP must anticipate and implement all elements of activities in an organized fashion.

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

¢ Provide engaged presence to prepare youth for success while creating a safe and healthy Club
environment that facilitates positive youth development

¢ Ensure facilities, equipment & supplies are maintained

e Assist with planning, developing, implementing and evaluating programs



BOYS & GIRLS CLUBS
OF KING COUNTY

® Collect and track Club member attendance, coursework and behavior data

¢ Model mature work behaviors to ensure a productive work environment

* Ensure program areas are set-up and cleaned up on a daily basis

e Assist in facilitation of club specific and BGCA core programs

e Assist in facilitation and delivery of High Yield Learning Activities (HYLAs)

¢ Ensure member confidentiality during and after employment: which includes, but not limited to
membership data, and school data and other information obtained

¢ Affirm positive behavior in members, and deliver coaching conversations and redirection when
needed

¢ Build partnerships with parents and families

¢ Develop programs and activities that support the three impact pillars: healthy lifestyles, good
character and citizenship, and academic success

QUALIFICATIONS, KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, AND ABILITIES

¢ Knowledge and experience working with a non-profit youth development agency, Boys & Girls Club
experience preferred

¢ Strong organization skills, attention to detail, professional presence, strong customer relations skills
and ability to maintain strict confidentiality

¢ Understanding of youth development principles, ability to motivate youth in a positive way

¢ Collaborate with other Clubs, Sites and Community Partners

e Learn and support new ideas for the good of the Club

¢ Model and guide youth in strengths-based problem solving, goal setting and study skills

¢ Experience working within diverse cultures preferred

Your Vision of Working with Any Partner Organizations. Include What Programs
or Services They Would Offer, Whether They Would Share Space in The Facility,
as well as their Contact Information

Youth Eastside Services. We had a partnership with them for the 2021-22 school year where someone
would come out Weekly and offer supports. We’d like to partner again with Youth Eastside Services
(YES) to deliver mental health care services at the Club. YES is a leading behavioral health services
provider for children and youth in East King County. They work with the local school district and other
nonprofits in a similar capacity. YES professional therapists would provide supportive behavioral health
services through regular Weekly Club visits. They would also be able to share resources, provide
referrals, and offer recommendations to staff, parents, and students.

Contact: Judith Mercado, Latino Youth & Family Specialist 425-747-4937 x2320
judithm@youtheastsideservices.org



mailto:judithm@youtheastsideservices.org

BOYS & GIRLS CLUBS
OF KING COUNTY

Community Partner Spaces

If awarded the lease, we would create a Community Partners space in one of the larger offices/rooms in
the building. Our vision is that we would equip the room with desks, shelves, rack card holder, etc.
where the Community Partners we work with can come in on a regular schedule to provide resources to
the Teens. Ideas for outreach would be LWSD Foundation, Hopelink, Seneca Center, Friends of Youth,
and more.

Mental Wellness Initiative

We would also like to reserve the back-office space as a part of our Mental Wellness Initiative. The
impacts of the pandemic and virtual learning on youth, have created a need for Mental Wellness
services for youth in the communities in which we serve. BGCKC is focused to meet the needs of youth
by implementing Behavioral and Mental Health professional services that will establish organizational
structures, day to day practices and policies, staff training, one on one clinical support, and provide
cultural approaches to serve the diverse youth and staff. As Well as establish metrics to measure the
effectiveness of the services.

In the past several years, BGCKC has partnered with local mental health experts to learn about Mental
Health by testing a variety of programs with youth. The programs ranged from research-based
mindfulness and movement, professional Clinical Therapists specializing in youth working in the Clubs to
youth therapeutic workshops.

Staff have felt unable to meet the needs of youth who are experiencing distress and they are requesting
more specialized training on adverse childhood experiences, trauma informed programing and
behavioral support.

Families have expressed frustration that counseling services for youth are unavailable or have long wait
lists or unaffordable.

The Mental Wellness Initiative within the BGCKC will serve youth and staff who are in need. The
Initiative will include:

e Behavioral Health specialist for each Club.

e Youth focused Clinicians to serve youth who need one on one support.

e Director to lead the Initiative across county and with community experts.

e Behavioral Health Advisory Board made up of 5-8 community experts with diverse backgrounds
and experiences of supporting Mental Wellness with youth/families. The Board will provide
expert advice on topics and needs of supporting the initiative during monthly one-hour virtual
meetings. Currently in recruitment.



BOYS & GIRLS CLUBS
OF KING COUNTY

Corporate and community partnerships with strong existing relationships that we would integrate
into KTUB programming and support through additional funding and volunteer hours. We will broker
relationships that we have within our network to ensure positive interactions and outcomes.
Examples and ideas include:

Starbucks — KTUB Café Partner

Staples — Study Area and Art Room Partner

Microsoft — E-Sports and Technology partner

Seattle Mariners - Fun at Bat Partner utilizing Lee Johnson Field
Seattle Seahawks — Changemakers and Spirit of 12 Partner
Boeing — Lift Off for Learning and STEM Partner

Kroger Foundation — Healthy Lifestyles Partner

Expedia — Days of Caring Partner

Amazon — National Days of Youth Advocacy

We would love to continue and steward the partnership with the Kirkland Kiwanis Club by keeping the
naming opportunity inside of the building and asking them to invest in creative and thoughtful
programming that helps the Teens excel in school and future careers.

Possible Events Hosted in the Space

Youth of the Year 2024

Be You Teen Late Night 2024
Friday Night Feeds

National Fine Arts Exhibit

Articulated Strategy to Establish and Maintain Positive and Cooperative
Relationships with The Parks and Community Services Department, Kirkland
Police Department, and Pertinent Non-Profit Services Providers.

With the Kirkland Urban Development now surrounding the Kirkland Teen Union Building we see the
potential to make the building a cornerstone of the community. Being a strong community partner is
very important to Boys & Girls Clubs of King County. We want to work together to create specialized
targeted programming that works to empower youth to excel in school, become good citizens and lead
healthy, productive lives. This programming will foster healthy relationships with all levels of City of
Kirkland employees.



BOYS & GIRLS CLUBS
OF KING COUNTY

Working with the Parks & Recreation Department:

Finding a way to collaborate to use the nearby spaces such as Lee Johnson Field, Peter Kirk Pool and the
skate park to enhance our Sports & Recreation programs as well as our Healthy Lifestyles programming.
We would also invite the Parks & Recreation Department to use the space as needed for their arts or
indoor programming when the Teens are not using the building. Positive programing and engagement
activity into the parks during open hours would be one of our main goals.

Working with the Community Services Department:
Working with the Special Events team to have the Teens involved in local Community Engagement
events such as the Fourth of July Celebration, Oktoberfest and Dia de Los Muertos events.

Working with the City of Kirkland:
Providing the space to host Park Board meetings, City Council gatherings and Community Input
meetings.

Working with the Kirkland Police Department:

This is one of the opportunities that we see as the area for the most positive growth and interaction
with the Teens. We would seek to schedule regular meetings with community police officers to establish
and strengthen relationships with the Youth. We would also welcome the opportunity for regular
meetings with our Area Director, Kendrick Davis, to meet with a liaison from the Police Department to
address any issues in the Clubs or what the YDP’s are seeing with the youth. A regular presence in the
Clubs through things like community walks, back-to-school events, Friday Night Feeds, and Holiday
Helpers is something that we would love to see and create an open invitation to.

Another way to foster this positive relationship is through our workforce readiness program. We would
invite speakers from all of the Civil and Public Service departments to an annual career fair focused
solely on these areas. If a Youth decides that they would like to pursue a career as a police officer,
firefighter or parks employee they could set up a mentoring schedule to make sure they are on the
correct path in education and community service.

We have a strong desire to mirror programs in other cities that lead youth to develop positive
relationships with law enforcement. An example could be similar to Spokane Police Department PAL.

Working with Other Non-Profit Service Departments:

We would love to be a strong partner with the Kirkland Senior Center next door. Whether it is inviting

them over for game nights, movie nights or low impact activities we want to make sure that the Youth
see the benefits of socializing with an older generation. We also hope that the Teens that are engaging
are adding a benefit to the Seniors as Well — maybe a few TikTok tutorials!



BOYS & GIRLS CLUBS
OF KING COUNTY

Practices Around Offering Programs and Services That Are Welcoming, Inclusive
and Accessible, and Will Serve Diverse Youth from A Variety of Backgrounds

Celebrating our Heritage - Heritage Months
Developing engaging, thoughtful and inclusive programming around these important months will
increase participation from youth of diverse backgrounds

e February- African American/Black History Month

e March- National Women'’s History Month

e April- Community Service Month, Earth Month, Autism Awareness Month
e May- Asian/Pacific Heritage Month, Mental Health Month,

e June- LGBTQ+ Pride Month

e September- National Hispanic Heritage Month (September 15 - October 15)
November- Native American & Alaska Native Heritage Month

Rainbow Club

At Boys & Girls Clubs of King County, we provide safe spaces for youth to grow and thrive by honoring
diversity and inclusion, treating others with respect, and expressing gratitude; We embrace alternative
ways of thinking. We support our Youth who are members of the LGBTQ+ community and work to
develop strong allies.

Removing Barriers

There is a S50 a year membership fee that can be waived if a financial hardship is a barrier.
Transportation will be provided from Juanita High School and additional area middle schools. We will
work with Lake Washington School District to help identify the youth and communities that need us
most and strategize how to get them to KTUB and engaged in the programming and access to services
and resources.

Accessibility and Belonging

We are aware that a building full of energetic Teens may not be the best fit for everyone. However, our
goal is to make the space as accessible as possible for those with sensory processing issues. Tools like
sensory bins and calm down areas will be avaible to all of the Youth at the Club and the Youth
Development Professional are trained to use them. If there are larger issues we will meet with families
to make sure that needs are met and the Club experience is positive. If needed, aids are welcome.



BOYS & GIRLS CLUBS
OF KING COUNTY

Any Proposed Facility Alterations That Would Be Undertaken by The
Organization

There may be more if awarded the lease and things are discovered after ArtsWest vacates the property.

From the initial tour the main area that we would undertake is the café area. We would finish the
counter tops, look for new equipment and replace tables and chairs. Ultimately, we would like to reopen
the café as a fundraising opportunity for the Keystone Club.

Other items that would take place by organizing Days of Caring with community partners would be:
Trash removal

Deep cleaning

Painting all rooms

Ceiling tiles that need to be replaced

Reorganize supplies that will stay

Create thoughtful office spaces

New furniture where needed

Clean out and assess the music studio area, source new equipment as needed

Support or Resources Requested from The City to Operate Successfully

If awarded the lease, we would officially request $175,000 from the City to assist in staffing,
programming and maintenance of the building. Ideally, we would be able to access city maintenance to
reduce costs where we can.

In addition to the funding, collaboration in marketing the building and space to increase membership
and visibility would be the key to continued success. Space in the Parks & Recreation seasonal program
guide, cross promotion on social media channels and coordination with the school districts would drive
Teens to the building to ensure it is a lively, fun, safe space to be.



BOYS & GIRLS CLUBS
OF KING COUNTY

Anticipated Annual Operating Budget Outlining Revenue and Expenses for The
KTUB Lease and Operations, Including Any City Support or Private Donations
Expected to Operate in a Financially Sustainable Manner

Revenue
Source Amount
Membership fees $7,500.00
Summer programming fees $24,000.00
City Funding Request $175,000.00
Sponsorships/Grants $50,000.00
Community Support $5,000.00
Space rental revenue $10,000.00
$271,500.00
Expenses
Item Cost
Director and YDP Staffing $108,416.00
Food and snacks $32,500.00
Programming and Equipment $15,000.00
Field trips $6,000.00
Special Events $10,000.00
Transpiration and Fuel $5,200.00
Utilities and Maintenance $12,000.00
Mental Wellness Initiative Staff | $65,000.00
Reserve/Emergency Fund $15,000.00
Marketing $2,000.00
$271,116.00

We will work with our CEO and Director of Finance to develop a reserve plan to sustain operations if
there were another catastrophic event, like Covid-19 closures, to occur again. We are required by Boys
& Girls Clubs of America to maintain a reserve fund to meet all financial agreements in the event that
the Clubs cannot operate. If needed, we can provide the full outline and records from how our
organization remained open during the pandemic.

Maintenance will be built into the Boys & Girls Clubs scheduled usual maintenance program, also it is
planned to fundraise for a reserve fund to secure ongoing programming at Kirkland Teen Union Building
if awarded the lease.



Sample Weekly Plan - October 2023

3:00 - 3:45 Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday
Transportation Van Driver Van Driver Van Driver Van Driver Van Driver

Art & Design Lab

. . Hang time & Hang time & homework Hang time & Hang time & .
Kiwanis Room Teen Choice
homework help help homework help homework help

Computer Lab

"The Pit" Billards & Four Square Family Feu'd & Cup | Magic the Gathering & Tabletop Board Free Choi.cs in "The
Stacking Foosball Games Pit
Closed or Session Closed or Session Closed or Session
MACKIE Studio . r ! Closed or Session Time | Closed or Session Time . ! . !
Time Time Time

Keystone Cafe Snack Snack Snack Snack Snack
3:45 - 4:45 Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday
Explore Collaborative
Art & Design Lab Explore Collages Explore Sculputure Art | Explore Printmaking | Explore Mixed Media XP Art WV

Hang time & Hang time & homework Hang time & Hang time &

Kiwanis Room Teen Choice
homework help help homework help homework help
Stage Yoa Hio Hop Dance Gloves for Greatnes w/ Hib Hob Dance Open Mic (1st & 3rd
e E e Mayweather Boxing* e Fridays)




Computer Lab closed closed closed closed closed

"The Pit"

X Rocksmith+ Guitar Rocksmith+ Guitar Rocksmith+ Guitar Rocksmith+ Guitar Rocksmith+ Guitar
MACKIE Studio
Lessons Lessons Lessons Lessons Lessons

Keystone Cafe Open (Teen Led) Open (Teen Led) Open (Teen Led) Open (Teen Led) Open (Teen Led)

Club Meeting 4:45-5:00

5:00- 6:00 Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday
Edible Art: Unicorn Self Portrait with Art of Ed: Shoe Photo Scavenger
Art & Design Lab ! ! ! W_I ] Pottery Jam Vens
Toast natural materials Contour Drawing Hunt

Board Games w
Birthday Cards for Keystone Meeting (14- / Program Showcase

Seniors or Flyswatter
Seniors 18 yrs) v Planning (15)
Volleyball

Kiwanis Room Torch Club (11-13 yrs)

MyFuture Leadership
Unit Level 1 (20)

Computer Lab eSports: Smash Bros. LEGO First eSports: Smash Bros. Teen Choice

" i Cup Stacking . SMART Girls (M.S.) | Four Square Tourney/
The Pit Spiderweb . . FILM FRIDAY:
Tournament Sept - November Magic the Gathering
MACKIE Studio #WeOw‘nRadio: Lyricism 101 #WeOw'nRadio: Closed ?r Session Closed ?r Session
Podcasting Club Podcasting Club Time Time



Keystone Cafe

Open (Teen Led)

Open (Teen Led)

Open (Teen Led)

Open (Teen Led)

Open (Teen Led) |

6:00- 6:30

Positive Parent
Connect

KTUB Clean-up Pride
Team

Kiwanis Room

Monday

Teen Director

Art& Design Nexus

Closed

Tuesday

Teen Director

Computer Lab

Closed

Wednesday

Teen Director

MACKIE Studio

Closed

Thursday

Teen Director

"The Pit"

Eastside Area
Community Advisory
Board Meeting

Friday

Teen Director

Kiwanis Room

Closed

Computer Lab
Open for Teens Open for Teens Open for Teens FILM FRIDAY:

KeystoneCafe .| | | | |Dinner(TeenNights)
YDP

Teen Night 6:30 -
10:00pm



N

BOYS & GIRLS CLUBS

OF KING COUNTY

KIRKLAND
KEYSTON

Leadership for teens ages 14-18

FOR MORE INFO:

WHAT IS KEYSTONE? Advisor: Tiffany Lukenda, Teen Director

« Keystone affords teens ages 14-18 an opportunity tlukenda@positiveplace.org
to gain valuable leadership and service experience. 425-827-0132

 Teens conduct activities in four areas: academic MEETINGS
success, career exploration, community service,
and teen outreach.

 Astrategic partnership between Aaron's Inc. and
BGCA provides Clubs with the tools and resources
to create a positive place for teens as well as for
kids.

 Upcoming events include a teen-run Haunted
House, Turkey Dinner, and more!

Hybrid format, Date and Time TBD

{0} 1S8J8)UI J0J URIS






[0-5'\

BOYS & GIRLS CLUBS

OF KING COUNTY

‘R ESPORTS

Esports is an opportunity for the teenage Club members to compete in
video games against other Club members at other Clubs in King County.

It runs similar to a sports league. All players will register for the games they want to play
and will then be scheduled for the season. They will be required to show up on time and if
they are unavailable they can make arrangements with their Director to play another day.

Mobile, Xbox, and Nintendo Switch are the systems we use.
For more information, please reach out to your Teen Director or

email Josh Herrera, JHerrera@positiveplace.org
Next season will begin in October. Registration will open in September.




= BOYS & GIRLS CLUBS
\ \ / ,,, 0|= KING COUNTY

AR BN :
i

TR
vty NIGHT

5
] 2
ﬁ@/ | PIZZA | MANHUNT | MUSIC ﬁ@%
FRIDAY, SEPT 16

6:30PM-9:30PM

KIRKLAND BOYS & GIRLS CLUB
10805 124TH AVE NE
KIRKLAND, WA 98033

$5 TO ATTEND; CURRENT MEMBERS GET FREE
ENTRY IF THEY BRING A FRIEND!

Register: https://bit.ly/3RwYMe7

/(




ATTACHMENT B

v

-
S
N

the

FOR YOUTH DEVELOPMENT ¢
FOR HEALTHY LIVING
FOR SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

September 30, 2022

Penny Sweet, Mayor

Kurt Triplett, City Manager
City of Kirkland

123 5th Avenue

Kirkland, WA 98033

Subject: Proposal to the City of Kirkland for KTUB Operational Lease (Job #47-22-PCS)
Dear Mayor Sweet and City Manager Triplett,

The YMCA of Greater Seattle (the Y) is pleased to receive the invitation to respond to Kirkland Teen
Union Building Operational Lease RFP.

Since 1876, the Y has nurtured the potential of every child and teen by supporting their unique youth
development journey through holistic programming. From cradle to career, the Y provides all youth with
the tools and resources they need to succeed in life. With Vision 2025, we are more committed to this
work than ever and to advancing equity and justice for all, especially Black, Indigenous, and Other
People of Color and other marginalized youth who need us most.

The YMCA of Greater Seattle provided 10 years of stellar service to the Kirkland community at the
Kirkland Teen Union Building (KTUB) until, to our disappointment, our lease was not renewed in 2020,
during a time when the community needed us most. We are excited to have the opportunity to work
with the City of Kirkland, rebuild and reimagine relationships and partnerships, co-create a public-
private model in community, and deliver on our promise to Kirkland youth and families.

The Y has served thousands of youth and young adults from the Kirkland area through a variety of
programs and offerings. Many of these youth were considered at-risk youth, and our programs were
designed to provide positive alternatives. The Y creates strong networks and community partnerships
with other community-based organizations with similar missions to help our young people reach their
fullest potential. We look forward to resuming those relationships and bringing new collaborations to
the City of Kirkland.

We also garnered financial support from Kirkland civic organizations, such as the Kiwanis and Rotary
Clubs, both of whom continue to have a vested interest in our young people. We have remained
concerned that without these programs and partnerships, the youth of Kirkland will suffer, especially
opportunity youth, without our partnership. KTUB has served as a safe place and sanctuary for Kirkland
youth, and we need such a safe space now more than ever— thus our excitement for the opportunity to
resume our work at KTUB with the support and collaboration of the City of Kirkland.

The negative impact on teens caused by the triple pandemics of COVID-19, systemic racism, and climate
change cannot be mitigated by a few months of being back in school. Young people and their families
experienced trauma. Whether a household experienced social, financial, or physical harm due to the

YMCA OF GREATER SEATTLE
909 4th Avenue, Seattle, WA 98104
P 206 382 5004 F 206 382 7283 seattleymca.org



v

-
S
N

the

FOR YOUTH DEVELOPMENT ¢
FOR HEALTHY LIVING
FOR SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

pandemic, young people have missed out on nearly two critical years to develop their sense of self. Our
teenagers — the future builders, makers, and heroes of the region — need time together to heal and
acclimate to in-person lives. The Y is an expert and has a proven track record globally and locally at
guiding young people in exploring themselves and developing a future-focused perspective.

We believe that the Y, in collaboration with its social services partners across our region and the City of
Kirkland, is best suited to assist the young people at KTUB in developing their independence, building
skills and confidence to realize their full potential, and helping them explore their interests with positive
adult mentors. Thank you for considering our proposal to rebuild our collaboration and help our young
people thrive.

Sincerely,

A
Frank X. Shaw Loria Yeadon
Association Board Chair President/CEO
YMCA of Greater Seattle YMCA of Greater Seattle

YMCA OF GREATER SEATTLE
909 4th Avenue, Seattle, WA 98104
P 206 382 5004 F 206 382 7283 seattleymca.org



7

t h e FOR YOUTH DEVELOPMENT @
< FOR HEALTHY LIVING
SS’ FOR SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

RESPONSE TO JOB #47-22-PCS FOR KTUB OPERATIONAL LEASE

Organization Legal Name: Young Men's Christian Association of Greater Seattle

Address: 909 Fourth Avenue
Seattle, WA 98104

Primary Contact: Mark Putnam, AVP Social Impact Center

mputnam@seattleymca.org
206-749-7542

Term of Services: June 1, 2023 — May 31, 2028 (5 years)

Proposed Services:

The YMCA of Greater Seattle (YGS or the Y) shares the City of Kirkland's vision to re-energize
and re-activate the Kirkland Teen Union Building (KTUB) as a safe space for teens to thrive.
KTUB has been a place for youth to gather, meet friends, play, learn, and grow for decades. To
emerge from the COVID-19 pandemic and the resulting isolation, youth need teen center
spaces like KTUB more than ever. The Y creates opportunities for youth to build community
together throughout the Greater Seattle region and seeks to bring a diverse range of
programming to Kirkland youth, operated by Y staff and partner agencies. YGS is prepared to
be nimble and responsive to the ideas and needs of youth by adjusting programming throughout
the school year with their guidance.

Cost for Services: $404,048 per year


mailto:mputnam@seattleymca.org

7

t h e FOR YOUTH DEVELOPMENT @
< FOR HEALTHY LIVING
_\é’ FOR SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

YMCA of Greater Seattle Organizational Overview
Mission

The YMCA of Greater Seattle (YGS or the Y) was founded in 1876 to address the community's
need for social services, including housing, meals, vocational training, and education. YGS
designs approaches around the lifespan of young people from birth to age 25, preparing them to
be safe, capable, and confident contributors to the community, and works to eliminate childhood
adversity by focusing on early learning, parental enrichment, and development of youth skills.
The Y believes that the earliest intervention and prevention of inequities of the social
determinants of children's health is critical to achieving its mission and vision.

As a 501(c)3 charitable organization, the Y operates programs and provides services to fulfill its
mission: Building a community where all people, especially the young, are encouraged to
develop their fullest potential in spirit, mind, and body. This mission, in its holistic approach and
with a focus on the young, has proven timeless, and is undergirded by the tenets of youth
development, healthy living, and social responsibility.

YMCA of Greater Seattle

14 “Swim & Gym" Branches across King County 2?:;1%&1:23(::2392?[’ -

Youth Development

YGS connects young people to caring adults who create environments free of harm and
develops the trust necessary to intervene, reduce exposure to adversity, and confront economic
oppression. Through a broad range of programs and services, including mental health and
substance use counseling, crisis intervention, intensive wraparound, child welfare, juvenile
justice services, transitional housing, employment, education, chronic disease prevention,
childcare, and diverse fitness options, the Y improves the health and vitality of community
members so that all, especially the young, may realize their fullest potential in spirit, mind, and
body.

The Y Social Impact Center (YSIC), the Social Services division of the YMCA of Greater
Seattle, specializes in serving youth and young adults who have experienced homelessness,

Page 1 of 20



' ®
t h @ FOR YOUTH DEVELOPMENT ©

% FOR HEALTHY LIVING
§' FOR SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

trauma, foster care, or involvement in the justice system. For nearly 50 years, the YSIC has
offered services in partnership with young people throughout King County.

|

BEHAVIORAL HOUSING & FOSTER YOUNG
HEALTH HOMELESS CARE ADULT
SERVICES SERVICES SERVICES SERVICES

X “n

. -
"2 s anr?®

YMCA of Greater Seattle Mission
Building a community where all people, especially the young,
are encouraged to develop their fullest potential in spirit,
mind, and body.

Y Social Impact Center

Housing & Homeless .
Foster Care Services Young Adult Services

* Crisis Outreach « Prevention Services * Foster Home = Employment and
« Qutpatient Mental « Community Licensing and Training
Health Counseling Housing Programs Placement = Education
+ Substance Use = Emergency Shelter + Family and Youth = Violence
Counseling o Site-Based Support Prevention
= Psychiatry Programs (Seattle + Foster Care + Resource Center
and South King Transitions for Young Adults
County) + Respite and Shelter

o e
‘One Team < the !

YSIC's model of care encompasses youth development, healthy living, and social
responsibility. Utilizing individual, family, and community strategies, programs operate under a
comprehensive Theory of Change:

Page 2 of 20



FOR YOUTH DEVELOPMENT @
< FOR HEALTHY LIVING
SS’ FOR SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Y Social Impact Center - THEORY OF CHANGE
— AT T e

Building Compatendias
and Capatal

# Risk Behaviors Reduced # Permanently Housed * School Engaged = Employable
# Social Emotional Behaviors » Farnily Parmanancy Achsaved » Life Skills Improved » Educated
and Resiliency Improved # Stabllized in a Safe Hore « Legal Barriers Addrassed, = College Ready
* Systems Invohemant Diverted o Intensity of Care and Services fitigated or Divartad * Support Network
or Reduced Decreased *Health and Wellness Access Strengthenad
» Fostar and Host Homes and Utilization Incraasad = Employars Engaged
Avadlability Increased

e e ¥ Social Impact Centar's model of care ancompasses youth developmant, healthy living, and secial respansibility, '
-oa: In#_nlen- W use four strategies at the Individual, farmay, and community bevel to achleve our mission and measure change.  ppe
< Ome Team «
i

As depicted in the Theory of Change, the first strategy of the YSIC divisions (Behavioral Health,
Foster Care, Housing/Homeless Services, and Young Adult Services) emphasizes prevention,
risk reduction, and detection of the causes of trauma. Employing housing first, crisis response,
and stabilization approaches, the second strategy acknowledges that many participants enroll in
services during a crisis. YSIC programs have the expertise to intervene quickly with coordinated
services and resources that support a whole person approach.

After bringing stability and disrupting the cycle of crisis, the next goal focuses on fostering skill
building and confidence to engage in health-promoting institutions (e.g., school, healthcare, and
community life). For youth and young adults to actualize their tremendous potential, they need
support and skills to successfully navigate life transitions that come with age and each stage of
development. Increasing the likelihood of independence and self-sufficiency involves developing
soft and hard skills, the chance to practice and employ new skills in a supportive environment,
and a diverse network of adults and peers that provide ongoing resources, advice, and support.

VISION 2025

To respond to the needs of the King County community, YGS has adopted a strategic plan
designed to advance equity and justice for all through whole person health with a trauma-
informed wellness approach — considering a person’s past and present life experiences — to
promote healing and belonging. Hypothesizing that by taking a holistic approach to individual
health for all, centering the Y to become an antiracist organization, and driving necessary
systems change (starting with the Y itself), YGS can produce more equitable outcomes for all,
especially Black, Indigenous & People of Color (BIPOC), as well as, other marginalized youth,
families, older adults and communities, to develop their full potential.

o ATTEND TO WHOLE PERSON HEALTH FOR ALL. Y programs will embrace and
deploy a holistic approach to health and wellness by integrating programs and services
to address all aspects of health to include physical, mental & emotional, social/
relational, spiritual/cultural, and community well-being. Adopting a trauma-informed

Page 3 of 20



t h =) FOR YOUTH DEVELOPMENT @
< FOR HEALTHY LIVING
SS’ FOR SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

approach in the delivery of programs and services, YGS programming will consider an
individual’s lived experiences, both past and present, and to promote healing, health,
and belonging.

o CENTER EQUITY & JUSTICE FOR ALL. By actively promoting a culture free from bias
and injustice, YGS is committed to becoming an anti-racist organization and centering its
work around active, disciplined efforts to disrupt multi-dimensional aspects of racism,
starting with YGS, by removing institutional and systemic barriers that result in
oppression, racism, and inequitable outcomes. Y staff will aspire to bring the Y’s
Mission, Core Values, Equity Statement to life and ensure YGS is accountable to
marginalized communities for creating equitable and sustainable environments where
equity and justice are woven into all activities and locations, in a culturally versatile,
affirming, and respectful manner.

o DRIVE SYSTEMS CHANGE. Recognizing the historical inequities in community systems
that impact individual well-being — whether a lack of access to healthcare, exposure to
harmful environmental, toxins, or inadequate availability to healthy produce — to name
only a few of the factors that drive whole person health, equity & justice, YGS will utilize
its expertise, community trust, and a unique role to disrupt inequitable systems and build
equitable systems — through the policies and practices that undergird its programs - to
produce more equitable outcomes and enable whole person health for all. Driving
systems change through programs and advocacy, YGS will remove barriers to access
and create enabling conditions in King County communities. YGS seeks to disrupt and
re-imagine systems that have produced harm and inequitable outcomes, particularly for
BIPOC and other marginalized and underserved communities.

e RECOVER STRATEGICALLY & EQUITABLY. With the context of the dual pandemics of
COVID-19 and systemic racism, YGS will answer the clarion call for equity and justice
for all by approaching its financial, programmatic, and organizational recovery within in
the needs of our community. With an unwavering commitment to advance equity and
justice for all, YGS will ensure Y members, program participants, volunteers, and staff
reflect the diversity and multiculturalism of the community we serve. Finally, YGS will
seek out opportunities to innovate, collaborate with others, disrupt systems that are
barriers to equity, and co-design and implement new models for a better YGS.

Past Performance

The Y's first location on the Eastside of King County opened in a Kirkland storefront in 1943.
The first YMCA-owned Eastside facility opened at the present Bellevue-Redmond Road location
in 1967, about six miles southeast of KTUB.

YGS operated KTUB from 2010 — 2020. Under Y leadership, KTUB provided teens with a safe
space to be themselves, foster healthy relationships, and seek additional training and learning
opportunities while having access to resources and mentorship that would help them to follow
their dreams and overcome challenges they are facing. Unfortunately, in 2020, the Y’s lease to
operate KTUB was declined. This closure was a significant loss to the Kirkland, and YGS
regularly receives inquiries from youth and families asking when KTUB will reopen. In 2019,

Page 4 of 20



FOR YOUTH DEVELOPMENT @

' ®
FOR HEALTHY LIVING

<
SS’ FOR SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

the

YGS served more than 1,100 unduplicated youth at KTUB and recorded nearly 14,000 visits to

the site.

YGS has sought to find a way to continue to support for Kirkland youth and families, through
outreach and partnerships with partner agencies. Even without KTUB as a service hub, YSIC

was able to support youth, young adults, and their families in Kirkland. See below for a

summary of participants served in the Social Impact Center programs during 2021 who reside in
Kirkland (zip codes: 98033 and 98034):

YSIC Clients, Kirkland residents, by program 2021

Division Program Name Service Percent
Count
Behavioral Health Crisis Response and Outreach 48 63.2%
Behavioral Health Mental Health and Substance Use Counseling | 12 9.7%
Foster Care Transition Age Foster Youth 2 1.8%
Housing Community-Based Housing 3 3.6%
Housing Rental Assistance and Eviction Prevention 11 15.3%
Housing YMCA Facility-Based Housing 1 1.4%
Young Adult Services | Employment and Training 2 2.5%
Young Adult Services | Youth Centers 2 2.5%
Total | 81 100.0%

So farin 2022, YSIC has provided services to 4,540 unique youth, young adult, and adult
participants countywide. The Year-to-Date (YTD) total includes 2,356 participants in behavioral
health, 672 in foster care, 1,528 in housing and homeless services, and 959 in young adult
services. Anticipated projections for 6,000 unique clients served in 2022 are expected to exceed
the 2021 totals of 5,277. Recent highlights include:

o Doubling the number of foster youth placed and supported as they transition from care to
nearly 900 in 2021, including expanding LifeSet to multiple counties and foster parents
by 75%.

e Doubling young people enrolled in behavioral health (mental health and substance
abuse) counseling or emergency crisis support to 3,500 in 2021.

¢ Doubling the number of young people housed each night to 450 in 2021. Added 100 new
permanent units in Seattle, Auburn, and Tacoma, and provided over six million dollars in
eviction prevention to young adults.

e More than tripled the number of staff and youth served by Y violence prevention teams,
expanding programming in Seattle, Burien, and South County.

Key Staff and Expertise

Loria Yeadon, President and CEO — Loria is a champion and advocate for equity and justice for
all, especially youth and families in marginalized communities—she is the first woman and first

Page 5 of 20



7

t h =) FOR YOUTH DEVELOPMENT @
< FOR HEALTHY LIVING
SS’ FOR SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

person of color to serve as CEO in the Y’s 146-year history. She serves on the Board of
Directors of Laird Norton Corporation and is a former National Board Member for Girl Scouts of
the USA. Loria received her BS in Electrical Engineering from the University of Virginia; MS in
Electrical Engineering from Georgia Institute of Technology; and JD from Seton Hall School of
Law. She was the recipient of the 2020 Female Founders Champion Role Model Award and
most recently, an honoree of the Puget Sound Business Journal’s Women of Influence Awards.

Mark Putnam, Associate Vice President of YSIC — With over 20 years' experience in social
services and public policy, Mark leads the YSIC, and under his leadership, YSIC has grown to
serve more than 5,000 young people each year, at 20 sites across King County. Mark earned
his BA in Sociology from Whitman College and MPA from Eastern Washington University. He
previously served as Executive Director of All Home (King County's homelessness coordinating
entity) and was named Change Agent of the Year by Real Change newspaper in 2015 and
received the Breaking Barriers award from Somali Youth and Family Club in 2017.

Aaron Fox, Senior Director of Young Adult Services — With over 20 years' experience in housing
program management, Aaron is responsible for providing the highest level of direct program
oversight and is available for strategic and high-level support. Aaron has worked for the YSIC
since 2007. Aaron oversees the Young Adult Services division which includes Employment and
Training, Education Initiatives, and Youth Violence Prevention programming. He identifies as
African American.

Antione Jackson, Program Director, Youth Connection Services — Antione led KTUB until 2020,
providing direct program oversight and leadership to all services offered. In that role, Antione
was a community builder with partner agencies, his team, the City of Kirkland, and the Kirkland
youth. Since leaving KTUB, Antione is currently a Program Director for Youth Connection
Services in YSIC. Youth Connection Services is a program for youth (ages 12—-18) with a first-
time and/or low-level offense (e.g., shoplifting, trespassing, truancy). Participants benefit from
timely, client-responsive behavioral health services to prevent further involvement with the legal
system.

Operational Plan

Alignment with the City of Kirkland's Vision and Goals for KTUB

YGS shares the City of Kirkland's vision to re-energize and re-activate the Kirkland Teen Union
Building (KTUB) as a safe space for teens to thrive. KTUB has been a place for youth to gather,
meet friends, play, learn, and grow for decades. To emerge from the COVID-19 pandemic and
the resulting isolation, youth need spaces like KTUB more than ever. The Y creates
opportunities for youth to build community together throughout the Greater Seattle region and
seeks to bring a diverse range of programming to Kirkland youth, operated by Y staff and
partner agencies. YGS is prepared to be nimble and responsive to the ideas and needs of youth
by adjusting programming throughout the school year with their guidance.

Page 6 of 20



7

t h =) FOR YOUTH DEVELOPMENT @
< FOR HEALTHY LIVING
SS’ FOR SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Proposed Programs and Services (including depth, breadth, and scope of operations)

1. Typical Academic Year Program and Service Plan for a typical week during the academic
year:

First and foremost, the Y aspires to create a teen center space that youth are excited to visit
daily. A place where they learn and grow, meet friends, achieve their goals, and build
confidence in their daily lives and their futures. The KTUB will be grounded in a youth-centered
approach and focused on safety, happiness, and success. While the Y has extensive
experience and expertise in youth programming and support, the programming at KTUB will
only be utilized and successful if it is envisioned in partnership with those who will be served. If
selected, the YSIC's Learning and Impact team will begin planning for a July 2023 opening by
seeking input from Kirkland youth, starting with the Kirkland Youth Council, regarding their
wants and needs for this space.

The Y to restore and exceed the 2019 levels of participation at KTUB. In 2019, 1,100
unduplicated individual youth participated in programming, with 14,000 separate visits by youth
to the space. In 2019, an average of 52 youth accessed programming at KTUB per day.

The Y will operate KTUB teen programming Monday to Friday, on Saturdays, and on a full-day
schedule during holidays. The proposed hours of operation on Monday to Thursday are from 2-
6pm, 1-6pm on Wednesdays due to early dismissal times from middle and high schools, 2-8pm
on Fridays, 12-4pm on Saturdays, and 10am to 6pm during school breaks. The Friday hours are
designed to provide a safe place for youth to engage in pro-social and positive activities and will
include food, music, and recreational activities. Staff will be on-site from 9am through 6pm daily,
including the Program Director, Lead Instructors (one for 6" to 8" graders, one for 9" through
12th graders), and a Community Engagement Coordinator to conduct outreach to schools,
partner coordination, and reception.

Full role descriptions are included below for these full-time KTUB staff. Additional Y staff will
provide recurring programming, as described below. For example, YSIC Workforce
Development staff will host the bi-weekly Job Club, and YSIC Behavioral Health staff will be on-
site for workshops, therapy sessions, and available in times of crisis.

An example daily programming schedule during the school year is:

Time Activity

2pm Welcome and Snacks

3pm Recreation and Arts

4pm Homework Assistance

5pm Activities and Workshops (rotating, see below)
6pm Close

The Y will utilize a youth-led approach to design weekend programming, encouraging young
people to identify their desired weekend programs by providing input and continuous feedback.

Page 7 of 20



7

t h e FOR YOUTH DEVELOPMENT @
< FOR HEALTHY LIVING
SS’ FOR SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

YGS currently anticipates Saturday-only programming from 12-4 pm and focusing each
Saturday session on a particular topic or activity. For example:

Date Focus

1st Saturday Job Club — volunteer support with resumes and mock interviews;
employer hiring events

2 Saturday Mental Health — workshops for youth and families on various
topics, such as suicide prevention

3rd Saturday Equity and Justice — youth led activities and expert
speakers/trainers

4th Saturday Field trip — Y bus takes youth to arts event, sporting event, or
recreational activity

The following are descriptions of programming that will be available to youth at KTUB:
e Drop-In Programming

The Y will run Friday Night Teen Feeds, Educational Workshops, etc., based on the season
and interest. Anyone age 13 to 19 is welcome during open hours of operation. Youth can
join workshops, play pool or games, and more.

e Homework Assistance (weekdays, 4-5pm)

Two Lead Instructors will support students in completing homework and improving study
skills. Homework assistance will be a core, daily part of programming supported by
volunteers. Tutors will include the Program Director and Lead Instructors, volunteers
(recruited by the Community Engagement Specialist), and volunteers coordinated with Big
Brothers Big Sisters. See more about Big Brothers Big Sisters partnership below.

¢ Rotational Programming (weekly or bi-weekly workshops)

o Job Club — this program is currently offered at YSIC sites in Seattle and Auburn.
Staff and volunteers support young people with job search, resume creation,
mock job interviews, and connections to employer partners, including Delta
Airlines, Starbucks, Hyatt Hotels, YGS recreational facilities, and more.

o Mental Health — certified counseling staff will provide group and individual
counseling opportunities, mindfulness exercises, peer support, suicide prevention
training, and youth-identified discussion topics or activities. The YSIC provided
mental health services to more than 3,000 participants in 2021, including 60 in
Kirkland. These services include mental health counseling, substance use
counseling, and mental health crisis services through the county-wide, 24/7,
Children’s Crisis Outreach Response System (CCORS). Experienced staff will
provide youth and their families with information and opportunities to improve
mental health, prevent or decrease substance use, and strengthen resiliency to
avoid crises.

o Recreation and Arts — as when the Y operated KTUB previously, the Art Studio’s
will be used to run workshops for various ages by re-establishing partnerships

Page 8 of 20



FOR YOUTH DEVELOPMENT @
FOR HEALTHY LIVING
FOR SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

with local organizations. The Recording Studio will be utilized to bring back music
programming, everything from recording songs, and making old school CDs to
offering concerts on the weekends. The Y continued to provide these types of
workshops with youth participants in other programs and is excited to re-
introduce these opportunities in Kirkland. Youth will lead decisions about which
arts and recreation opportunities will be provided at KTUB.

Watch this video highlighting the KTUB 2016 Youth Institute, demonstrating the
potential for arts programming at KTUB: KTUB YMCA Youth Institute 2016 —
Kirkland, Washington — YouTube.

e Supplemental Programs (bi-weekly and/or individualized supports as needed)

O

Page 9 of 20

Youth experiencing homelessness - The Y is part of a collaborative of
organizations addressing the needs of youth experiencing homelessness. This
includes Friends of Youth, which operates housing and shelter programming in
Kirkland and neighboring communities. A youth or family experiencing
homelessness can access services with a process called "coordinated entry for
all" or CEA. CEA assesses needs and triages access to resources, including
housing. The Y operates specialized programming county-wide for youth and
young adults experiencing housing instability, and these staff will offer support at
KTUB regularly. The Y and its partners can support youth and families with
emergency shelter, temporary housing, permanent housing, rental assistance,
host homes, eviction prevention, and housing search support.

Youth involved with first-time offenses — The Y offers Youth Connection Services,
a pre-arrest diversion program funded by King County Behavioral Health and
Recovery Division. Services are for youth (ages 12—18) with a first-time and/or
low-level offense (Shoplifting, Trespassing, Truancy, etc.) or similar behaviors
who would benefit from timely, client-responsive behavioral health services to
prevent further involvement with the legal system.

Youth involved in foster care — The Y supports foster youth and families
throughout the region, including Kirkland. Y staff provide daily support for foster
youth connected to the Bellevue DCYF branch and operate a home for girls who
are in between foster family placements in Bellevue. These youth will have
opportunities to participate in programming at KTUB, and staff will provide
informational sessions for families interested in fostering.

Youth interested in job training — in prior years’ operating KTUB, the Y utilized the
on-site kitchen's espresso machine station and partnered with Northwest
University to establish an internship program and will seek to re-establish that
partnership. Since Sept of 2021, YSIC has partnered with FareStart to provide a
7-week virtual Youth Barista and Customer Service program. FareStart provides
barista training, while the YSIC provides case management services. The
program engages youth who have been disconnected from work and school in
employment training and receive case management. While in the program, youth
build personal development skills, including self-confidence, teamwork, self-



FOR YOUTH DEVELOPMENT @
< FOR HEALTHY LIVING
SS’ FOR SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

efficacy, communication, developing positive adult relationships, conflict
resolution, critical thinking, and leadership skills. The program expands beyond
coffee service to all food service positions, and the Y will recruit KTUB youth to
participate in this program.

o Youth who have experienced school discipline - The Y proposes replicating a
successful YMCA program from Quebec, Canada. YMCA Alternative Suspension
was founded on the principle that traditional suspensions from school are missed
opportunities for everyone involved: the students, their families, the school, and
the community. YMCA Alternative Suspension's objective is to reduce the
number of students who experience repeated disciplinary measures to help
students improve their school experience and ultimately stay in school. The
program is designed as an out-of-school intervention in which 12- to 17-year-old
youth-in-crisis develop a trusting relationship with a positive adult role model, the
program youth worker. Instead of serving their suspension at home, the program
will welcome youth to KTUB and aim to reduce future suspensions and
disciplinary sanctions by offering participants an opportunity to turn their time
away from school into a positive experience that fosters personal growth and
autonomy.

o Youth from BIPOC and LGBTQ+ communities — The Y's Equity and Justice
Center of Excellence will provide regular opportunities for youth of all
backgrounds to expand their knowledge and practice of inclusiveness. As a
framework for these activities, the Y will honor and celebrate heritage months
(Black History, Pride, Latinx, Asian Pacific Islander, and more) and develop
workshops, events, and field trips in collaboration with youth. KTUB is a place
that will be welcoming of all youth and will provide opportunities for leadership
and skill building, particularly for those who are typically furthest from those
opportunities.

2. Program and service plan for a typical week during the summer:

The Y will offer programming throughout the summer, drawing on programming provided in
partnership with youth in other parts of the region.

Y-Scholars Summer University

Y-Scholars Summer University is a 6-week program designed to expand professional and
academic interest using a culturally relevant curriculum to stimulate learning and prevent
summer learning loss for youth in 6-12th grade. This program currently operates in Seattle,
Kent, and Sea-Tac. In addition, the program is age-appropriate, based on grade and emotional
maturity, so students can participate in a myriad of curriculum pathways. Summer University
includes, but is not limited to, recreation activities, College Portfolio Projects, Financial Literacy
Workshops, Employment and Learning Presentations, Resume Development Courses, Goal
Setting, field trips, Career Panels, and Health & Wellness Workshops.

Page 10 of 20



7

t h =) FOR YOUTH DEVELOPMENT @
< FOR HEALTHY LIVING
SS’ FOR SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In addition to the program's academic components, students explore local activities and field
trips throughout the community. This includes, but is not limited to, visiting places such as The
Museum of Pop Culture, attending the Seattle Mariners National Baseball League games,
participating in BBQs at a local park, attending movie premiers together, touring local colleges,
and other activities such as creating Tye-Dye clothing, chocolate covered fruit arrangements,
and their own custom t-shirts using skills learned earlier on in the program.

A main component of the Summer University program is the Shark Tank Business Competition.
The first week of program, students are divided equally into groups where they form their own
company and develop a product or service. Students then spend the next several weeks
developing a pitch for their business and present in front of their peers and a group of investors.
The investors range from student alumni, Y board members, and community small business
owners. Investors then score the student self-made business ideas based on creativity,
community impact, feasibility, and presentation. Upon completion of all presentations, the top
three businesses are awarded prizes.

Level Up

In 2023, YSIC will bring Level Up to Kirkland. Held annually since 2005, Level Up is YSIC'’s
biggest annual event designed for youth and young adults and provides activities such as a
resource fair, hiring fair, education fair, food as well as a variety of workshops for youth & young
adults in King County and beyond. Workshops include cooking classes, money management,
career exploration, life skills, yoga, Zumba, Hip Hop Dance and a host of others. Last year’s
event in Sea-Tac drew more than 250 youth participants and partner agency staff.

Day Camp & Outdoor Leadership Development

The YGS one of the largest providers of camping experiences in the Puget Sound. These
experiences include overnight camping at resident camps and local day camp experiences for
youth ages 3-18. The Y will offer two camp models to complement the specific KTUB
programming in this proposal.

Peak Camp is designed for youth entering grades 7-9 to support the critical middle school age.
The curriculum focuses on decision-making and conflict-resolution skills through teamwork.
Campers will work on developing their leadership skills and take part in outdoor community
service projects. The Y plans to serve 234 campers at KTUB with Peak Camp each summer.

Beyond City Limits is a camp model designed to help youth explore the outdoors close to home.
On this five-day adventure, campers will learn new outdoor skills, experience the beauty of the
mountains, and sharpen leadership skills. Monday and Tuesday are day trips to rock climb or
kayak followed by a two-night backpacking overnight Wednesday to Friday. The Y plans to offer
4 sessions of this camp serving 13 campers each session.

Page 11 of 20



7

t h e FOR YOUTH DEVELOPMENT @
< FOR HEALTHY LIVING
SS’ FOR SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Partner Programming
1. Friends of Youth

Friends of Youth serves youth and young families facing circumstances of homelessness, foster
care, and behavioral health challenges. The Y has partnered with Friends of Youth for decades.
Partnerships have included loaning shelter space at the Bellevue YMCA, co-leading the
County's youth Rapid Rehousing Program and Host Homes program, and sharing space and
programming at KTUB. Going forward, Y and Friends of Youth staff will partner to support youth
experiencing homelessness or behavioral health challenges at the KTUB. Friends of Youth staff
will share information with youth regularly, including how to access shelter and housing.

Contact: Paul Lwali, President and CEO; Paul@FriendsofYouth.org; (425) 869-6490
2. Big Brothers Big Sisters — Puget Sound (BBBSPS)

BBBSPS creates and supports one-to-one mentoring relationships that ignite the power and
promise of youth. BBBSPS makes meaningful mentorship matches between volunteers and
youth ages 6-20, and then provides training, resources, and support necessary for those
matches to succeed. At KTUB, the Y will seek to ensure that all interested youth are matched
with a BBBSPS mentor. Mentors and youth can meet at KTUB, with support from Y and
BBBSPS Sisters staff.

Contact: Alonda Williams, President and CEO; Alonda.Williams@bbbsps.org; (206) 456-9795
3. Hopelink

Hopelink, since 1971, has served homeless and low-income families, children, seniors, and
people with disabilities in King and Snohomish Counties, providing stability and helping people
gain the skills and knowledge they need to exit poverty for good. The Y will connect youth
participating at KTUB, and their families with Hopelink's wide range of services. Hopelink has
offered food resources, including boxed food for youth to bring home to their families and their
mobile grocery truck to KTUB. Food can also be packaged for those without kitchens, including
those living unhoused. In addition, Hopelink has offered to provide its "Financial Capabilities
Program," including coaching, education, and tools and resources, all tailored for youth and
their families.

Contact: Meghan Altimore, Vice President, Community Services and Operational Excellence;
MeghanA@Hopelink.org; (425) 943-7562

4. Studio East

If selected, the Y will work with the City and the current tenant, Studio East, to forge a
partnership and facility operations plan.

Page 12 of 20



7

t h e FOR YOUTH DEVELOPMENT @
< FOR HEALTHY LIVING
SS’ FOR SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Staffing Plan
Ms. Yvette Tolson, Program Director Ill, Education Initiatives

Ms. Tolson has worked at the YMCA of Greater Seattle for more than 30 years, mostly in
leadership roles. Ms. Tolson is a highly respected leader in the African American community.
Her program portfolio includes Y Scholars, a program that supports academic success for
African American and BIPOC students in Seattle, Highline, and Kent school districts. In this
year’s senior classes, 100% of the students graduated high school, 100% planned to enroll in a
4-year college, and over 20% had already obtained an AA degree at graduation. Ms. Tolson will
oversee the re-establishment of KTUB programming by directly supervising the KTUB Program
Director.

Program Director (1.0 FTE, to be hired)

The Program Director will lead the operations of KTUB. Responsibilities will include: Develop
programming working with a team to provide participants the best programing and services;
Serves as support for other YMCA instructors; Coordinate activities which fit the developmental
needs of youth; Communicate with, develop, and maintain positive relationships with youth and
families; Provide day-to-day leadership to volunteers and community partners; Follow YMCA
policies and procedures, including those related to medical and disciplinary situations, child
abuse prevention and emergency procedures; Maintain ordered arrangement, appearance,
decor, cleanliness, and learning environment of program site.

Lead Instructors (2.0 FTE, to be hired)

The lead instructors will be on-site at KTUB and responsible for planning and implementing
academic, social emotional learning, arts, and recreation activities for groups of youth. Other
responsibilities include: activities take place during after school day hours and out of school
hours, i.e. spring, winter, summer breaks etc.; Serve as support for other YMCA instructors;
Coordinate activities which fit the developmental needs of youth; Communicate with, develop,
and maintain positive relationships with youth and families; Provides day-to-day leadership to
volunteers; Follow YMCA policies and procedures, including those related to medical and
disciplinary situations, child abuse prevention and emergency procedures; Maintains ordered
arrangement, appearance, decor, cleanliness, and learning environment of program site.

Community Engagement Coordinator (1.0 FTE, to be hired)

The Community Engagement Coordinator will support the Program Director in recruiting and
managing volunteers, leading service projects and events, and nurturing partnerships with
businesses and organizations in Kirkland to support youth at KTUB. In addition, this position will
support daily operations at KTUB with administrative and reception support.

Page 13 of 20



t h e FOR YOUTH DEVELOPMENT ©
< FOR HEALTHY LIVING
Ss, FOR SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Yvette Tolson,
Program Director I,
Education Initiatives

KTUB Program Director

Community Engagement
Coordinatar

o '“E".' I
-Dne o -
+One Team the A

In addition to this full-time staff team, other YMCA and partner staff will be on site for the
workshops and activities described above.

Lead Instructor Lead Instructor

Page 14 of 20



7

FOR YOUTH DEVELOPMENT @
FOR HEALTHY LIVING
FOR SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

the

<
&
N

Operating Budget
KTUB Program Budget (proposed)

. Hourly Wage | Cost Per Year
SELTE with Benefits
Lead Instructor (2.0 FTE) $24.00 (each) $124,800.00
Community Engagement Coordinator (1.0 FTE) $24.00 $62,400.00
Program Director Il (1.0 FTE) $36.00 $93,600.00
Director of Employment IIl (.20 FTE) $43.00 $22,360.00
Auxiliary Y Staff (Y-funded, through other grants) N/A $100,000.00
Program Costs
Supplies (snacks, office supplies, program materials) $12,000.00
Utilities, Phones, Internet $12,000.00
Admin
Admin Costs (18%) $76,888.80
TOTAL $504,048.80

Resources Requested from the City of Kirkland

The annual budget for KTUB programming is $504,048. These primarily include personnel
costs, at $403,160, and estimates an additional $100,000 for auxiliary Y staff. The Y and grants
from other sources will cover the costs for these auxiliary Y staff. Administrative costs include
YMCA leadership, financial oversight, risk management, human resources, and more.

The Y respectfully requests $404,048.00 annually from the City of Kirkland to operate KTUB,
including a no-cost lease. If selected by the City to operate KTUB, the Y will immediately seek
private and other government grants to support KTUB expenses. However, the Y cannot commit
to securing these private resources until the City has selected its operator. Therefore, the total
amount required by the City could decrease. The Y anticipates raising 15-20% of the total cost
of the programming through private sources, with the remaining 85% coming from the City or
other governmental sources.

Proposed Facility Alterations

Before the Y contract ended in 2020, the Y made tenant improvements at KTUB. Improvements
included:

1. Technology Lab (funded by Kirkland Kiwanis)—3D Printer; Cosmo & Vector Robotic
Al's; Raspberry Pi Modules; Mac Books (updated)-Circuit Playground Express; New
Floors, Door (City of Kirkland); Fresh paint, data cabling, workstations & cabinets
(YMCA).

2. Recording Studio Refresh—Studio Audio Board (donated - Sid Jahn Family); Mac Mini
Studio Computer (donated - Jahn Family); Digital Turn Tables; Guitar & Bass Guitar;
Fresh paint, carpets, sound panels & console desk.

Page 15 of 20



7

t h =) FOR YOUTH DEVELOPMENT @
< FOR HEALTHY LIVING
SS’ FOR SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

3. Gaming & Drop In Equipment—Gaming Laptops (11), Xbox Consoles (2); HD Projector
& Scree; Pool Table (donated - Rotary Club); Air Hockey Table (donated - Chris family);
Oven (Kiwanis Club); Ping Pong Table (donated - House of Grace).

4. Youth Safety—Internal Security Cameras and Monitoring; Electronic Check in System
for Youth.

The Y will assess the current state of the building and hear from youth about programming they
would like to determine any potential facility alterations or improvements. In the past, KTUB
youth requested for a more modernized interior space. As a response, the KTUB team in 2019
teamed up with Professor Mark Mappala from Bellevue College, who teaches an Interior Design
Program. Professor Mappala and his class met with KTUB youth once a week for a month to
create a presentation for a YMCA KTUB remodel. Bellevue College had agreed to contribute
financially, and YGS also agreed to contribute. These plans will be reviewed with KTUB youth,
re-engage Bellevue College may be re-engaged, and the Y will discuss facility alterations with
the City at that time.

Cooperative Relationship Building with City of Kirkland and Partner Agencies

YSIC has a reputation for building and maintaining effective partnerships with local
governments, police departments, and community partner agencies through consistent
communication, shared values and approaches, and a belief that relationships between partners
and with participants are the basis for all progress. YSIC believes, as a core value, that to be
successful, young adult participants must be involved in program development, implementation,
and governance. The Y will work closely with the City Parks and Community Services
Department, Kirkland Police Department, partners, community members, and especially youth,
including the Youth Council, to establish a strong partnership and shared values and vision. The
Y envisions forming an advisory board to guide KTUB’s programming and vision. Continuous
communication among all partners, listening foremost to youth themselves, will create a
positive, cooperative, healthy, and sustainable partnership and a successful program for teens.

Below are a few successful collaborations between the Y and its community partners.

Since 2008, the Y co-leads is a part of a partnership in South Seattle and South King County to
reduce violence among youth and young adults. LINC (Leadership, Intervention, & Change) is
co-chaired by the Y’s Aaron Fox and the Burien Police Department’s Chief Boe, and includes
representatives from cities, school districts, police departments, King County Prosecutors
Office, and other community partners. Working alongside one another, each partner is focused
on the same solution. This fosters an increased understanding of roles and responsibilities and
has led to strong collaboration toward its goal of reducing violence among youth and young
adults.

In 2019, the Y acquired South King County's leading agency serving homeless youth: Nexus
Youth and Family Services. During this acquisition, the Y assumed responsibility for operating
and maintaining all properties owned by Nexus, while Nexus' supportive staff continued to
implement service provision. The Y and Nexus utilized a consulting firm to help align
organizational cultures, programmatic similarities and differences, and talk through

Page 16 of 20



7

t h =) FOR YOUTH DEVELOPMENT @
< FOR HEALTHY LIVING
SS’ FOR SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

organizational challenges that might be faced as two separate organizations joining forces to
collaborate as one entity. Through intentionality and planning, this process resulted in a
successful organizational merger.

Since 2012, the Y has partnered with King County Drug Diversion Court (KCDDC) to support
young adults in the KCDDC to break the cycle of addiction through accessing age-appropriate
housing and supportive services. Together, the Y and KCDDC support young adults to
successfully graduate from KCDDC and eventually exit Y housing to permanent housing
options, with gainful employment. Both programs support young adults to sustain their recovery
and acquire the life skills necessary to lead healthy, successful, and independent lives. KCDDC
contracts with the Y to place Drug Diversion Court participants into Y housing and has agreed to
provide rental assistance for these participants for up to 12 months. Following 12 months in Y
housing, Drug Diversion Court participants are eligible to remain in Y housing for up to an
additional 12 months (depending on their age) under a "self-pay" model that considers their
current income level.

The Y recently opened three new housing programs, two of which were made possible through
ambitious community partnerships. In September 2020, in partnership with a Seattle property
owner and King County, the Y opened Roy Street Commons, offering 38 micro-studio housing
units to youth and young adults experiencing homelessness. Then, in December 2020, the Y
partnered with Tacoma Housing Authority to open Arlington Apartments, offering 58 units to
young adults experiencing or at risk of experiencing homelessness.

In addition to housing program collaborations, many of the Y's supportive service programs
exist as parts of healthy, inter-agency collaborations. The Youth Engagement Team is part of a
collaboration between YSIC, Friends of Youth, and Center for Children and Youth Justice
(CCYJ). The Youth and Family Connection Network is run in collaboration with YouthCare. The
Alive and Free Program is operated through partnerships with CCYJ, the King County Public
Defenders, King County and Juvenile probation, police departments in Seattle and South King
County, and multiple local school districts. From the Y's Drop-in Center, participants can access
resources including vaccines, healthcare, legal counsel, voter registration, emergency food, and
more through the Y's many community partners, including Businesses Ending Slavery and
Trafficking (BEST), the University of Washington Youth Clinic, King County Library System,
LCYC, Teen Feed, and Food Lifeline. The Y has participated in several community-response
and advocacy groups, including the Washington Coalition for Homeless Youth Advocacy, King
County Youth Service Provider meetings, the Undoing Institutional Racism Collaborative, and
the King County Commercial Sexual Exploitation of Children (CSEC) Task Force, among
others.

Diversity, Equity, Inclusion and Belonging

YGS actively promotes a culture free from bias and injustice and is dedicated to removing
institutional and systemic barriers that result in oppression and racism. The Y will be
accountable to marginalized communities for creating equitable and sustainable environments
where social justice is woven into every facet of programs, and by caring for communities in a

Page 17 of 20



7

t h =) FOR YOUTH DEVELOPMENT @
< FOR HEALTHY LIVING
SS’ FOR SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

culturally versatile and respectful manner. This equity statement guides the vision for all
programming at the Y and promotes accountable to community.

The Y's history parallels our nation's history. Aspects of the Y's past are painful to acknowledge
and accept, from segregated facilities to well-intended yet culturally mis-appropriative
programming, and everything in between, but the Y has also been there on the front lines of
change as well, often ahead of its time, challenging social norms and boundaries for a more
equitable and just society for all. The Y stands humbly in its successes, failures, learnings, and
opportunities to do even more in the future. The Y's legacy as a champion of change for the
community is calling the Y forward to stand even taller with Black, Indigenous, and People of
Color (BIPOC) and other marginalized communities to address the social and racial inequities,
injustices, and biases that are barriers to achieving our fullest potential as individuals and a
community.

In 2020, YGS announced its Equity & Justice Center of Excellence to critically review how all
programs serve the community and identify the cultural and systemic ways many communities
are marginalized or unsupported. The Equity and Justice Center of Excellence works with
community leaders, government agencies, nonprofit partners, and private sector to advance
community-based and culturally appropriate research, design, and program delivery to progress
children, youth, young adults, and families towards a more equitable and just society. Through a
talented, diverse team of community educators, counselors, researchers, and volunteers, the Y
seeks to produce a world in which all young people feel empowered to advocate, change, and
contribute to their community's growth towards equity and justice. The Y uses a whole-person
health approach to investigate, co-design, and produce solutions that build individual and
community resiliency, creating connected, safe, capable, and confident people.

YGS commits to being an anti-racist learning organization, continuously monitoring workplace
culture for progress towards an inclusive anti-racism space, led by talented team members
empowered to audit, inquire, and take action. The Y is developing an equity screening that sets
goals for inclusion and power-sharing with vendors and has revitalized its employee resource
groups.

YSIC weaves social justice into all programs, providing culturally versatile direct services to
young people from diverse backgrounds. The Y prioritizes ensuring all people are welcome in
services and works to create an environment in which young people from diverse backgrounds
feel not only safe, but deeply affirmed. To promote fairness, equal access, and opportunity for
all people, YSIC 1) provides continuous staff training and resources to ensure delivery of
culturally responsive services, 2) invests in recruitment and retention of bilingual and bicultural
staff and staff with lived experiences like those of program participants, and 3) fosters
relationships with grassroots organizations who have strong ties to communities of color to
ensure the Y is accessible to all. From years of experience, the YSIC learned that marginalized
young people are often the most challenging groups to build trust with and engage in proactive
services. To address this disparity, YSIC prioritizes and values the impact of hiring a diverse
staff team that reflects the population of young people served.

Page 18 of 20



7

t h e FOR YOUTH DEVELOPMENT @
< FOR HEALTHY LIVING
SS’ FOR SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Y requires all staff to attend comprehensive training to gain skills that will improve their
service delivery, de-escalation skills, resource knowledge, and fidelity to the Y's best practice
approaches. The Y also trains staff to understand how to effectively support marginalized
populations, including young people of color, LGBTQ+, people with disabilities, and those
disenfranchised by the criminal justice system. Through an understanding of the history, origins,
and structures that support racism and intergenerational poverty, staff are more equipped to
develop anti-racist practices and effectively support program participants from marginalized
groups. The Y schedules and tracks staff training hours to ensure that staff have the skills and
knowledge needed to effectively build strong relationships with program participants.

The YSIC is committed to these principles of equity and justice. A key tenet of that commitment
is that staff represent those served. Nearly 70% of YSIC programs participants are Black,
Indigenous, and People of Color (BIPOC) or Lesbian, Gay, Transgender, Queer and/or
Questioning, Intersex, Asexual, Two-Spirit (LGBTQIA2S). YSIC staff are more than 60%
BIPOC, 50% leadership team is BIPOC, and our Advisory Board is 50% BIPOC of the YSIC
Advisory Board is BIPOC.

References
Please see the attached Letters of Support from:

e Big Brothers Big Sisters of the Puget Sound
e Hopelink
e Friends of Youth

Links

e 2021 Annual Report
e YMCA Vision 2025

Page 19 of 20


https://www.seattleymca.org/give/impact/2021-annual-report
https://www.seattleymca.org/about/vision-2025/why

% Big Brothers
) Big Sisters.
PUGET SOUND

September 29, 2022

City of Kirkland

Jay Gewin, Finance Department
123 5™ Avenue

Kirkland, WA 98033

Dear Mr. Gewin and members of the Kirkland City Council,

On behalf of the YMCA of Greater Seattle, Social Impact Center, | am pleased to write this letter of
support regarding our partnership with for their proposal for the operations of the Kirkland Teen Union
Building.

Y Social Impact Center, a division of the YMCA of Greater Seattle, provides effective support and services
to youth, young adults, and their families. The Y as an operator provides a holistic, trauma-informed
approach to delivering youth services. These services include: youth mentorship, recreation, mental
health and chemical dependency counseling, mental health crisis intervention, homelessness
prevention, rental assistance, transitional housing, shelter, permanent housing, education, foster care,
employment and violence prevention outreach, and case management.

Similar to Y Social Impact Center, Big Brothers Big Sisters of Puget Sound (BBBSPS) provides support for
young people to reach their highest potential. At BBBSPS our mission is to create and support one-to-
one mentoring relationships that ignite the power and promise of youth. We make meaningful
mentorship matches between caring, well trained adult volunteers and youth ages 6-20, and then
provides training, resources, and support necessary for those matches to succeed. Our vision for
partnership with the YMCA Social Impact Center and Big Brothers Big Sisters in 2023 and beyond is that
all interested youth participating at KTUB are matched with a mentor. Mentors and youth can meet at
KTUB, with support from Y and Big Brother Big Sisters staff.

Big Brothers Big Sisters has a 65 year history of mentoring success in the Puget Sound region, having
matched thousands of youth and volunteers with strong results and impact. We have experience
partnering with eductional institutions of all levels, corporations for workplace mentoring and
community organizations. We look forward to building a strong partnership with the Y to bring
mentoring to Kirkland at KTUB.

As President and CEO of Big Brothers Big Sisters of Puget Sound and someone who is familiar with the
success of the YMCA Social Impact Center, | believe the YMCA of Greater Seattle is best suited to
perform the extraordinary role of mentoring and developing Kirkland’s young people.

Sincerely,

Sbonda Willzina

Alonda Williams
President and CEO
Big Brothers Big Sisters of Puget Sound



DocuSign Envelope ID: AE4F65F6-D47B-4C83-96D2-E40B2131D85C

hopelink

September 28, 2022

City of Kirkland

Jay Gewin, Finance Department
123 5™ Avenue

Kirkland, WA 98033

Dear Mr. Gewin and members of the Kirkland City Council,

On behalf of Hopelink, | am pleased to write this letter of support regarding our partnership with the
YMCA of Greater Seattle for their proposal for the operations of the Kirkland Teen Union Building.

Y Social Impact Center, a division of the YMCA of Greater Seattle, provides effective support and services
to youth, young adults, and their families. The Y as an operator provides a holistic, trauma-informed
approach to delivering youth services. These services include: youth mentorship, recreation, mental
health and chemical dependency counseling, mental health crisis intervention, homelessness
prevention, rental assistance, transitional housing, shelter, permanent housing, education, foster care,
employment and violence prevention outreach, and case management.

Hopelink deeply values the strong supports provided to youth and young adults throughout our
community by the YMCA of Greater Seattle. They have been a strong and valued partner in North and
East King County.

Hopelink is confident that the YMCA of Greater Seattle is best suited to perform the extraordinary role
of mentoring and developing Kirkland’s young residents.

Sincerely,

DocuSigned by:
(Catlorine O,xs(u'mbww?
DFCBFA85D8A54D1...
Dr. Catherine Cushinberry
Hopelink CEO



(@

friendsofyouth

Re: Letter of Support for YMCA Social Impact Center — Service Operator — Kirkland Teen
Union Building

Dear Penny Sweet and Kurt Triplett,

This letter expresses the support of Mark Putnam’s and the YMCA Social Impact Center’s
application as a teen facility service operator. The YMCA of Greater Seattle is a key member of
the consortium of agencies providing social and recreation services for teens of all ages
throughout King County and its neighboring communities in this region.

We recognize that programs and services readily available to support youth and young adults in
Kirkland are crucial. Maintaining wholesome, age-appropriate programs that support teens, will
enhance our ability to regionally support their long-term stability and success. As an experienced
youth and young adult provider, Friends of Youth works closely with, and are proud partners of
YMCA Social Impact Centers. They have a proven track record of helping youth develop to their
fullest potential.

YMCA Social Impact Centers are partners through the King County Youth Services Provider
Collaboration and in other shared work or projects. Through our work together I have
experienced firsthand YMCA Social Impact Centers provision of high-quality programs and
services for youth and young adults. For these reasons, I am pleased to write a letter expressing
our organization’s strong support of their application to serve as Operator for the Kirkland Teen
Union Building.

Sincerely,

A Lo

/(_ Paul Lwali

President and CEO
a., he/him

paul@friendsofyouth.org | 425.869.6490
13116 NE 132 St,, Kirkland, WA 98034
friendsofyouth.org



mailto:paul@friendsofyouth.org
http://www.friendsofyouth.org/

	AGENDA
	d780f558-e41d-4eac-b424-928e08713f36.pdf
	Kirkland Teen Union Building RFP
	KTUB_Weekly-Sample-Schedule
	Copy of Keystone (Flyer (Portrait)) (3)
	Kirkland Metaverse Event
	MicrosoftTeams-image
	September Teen Late Night (2)
	BGCKC KTUB Letter of Support from Claudia Balducci
	Letter

	a33d1851-da4e-475c-8498-00f814c8e263.pdf
	response to job #47-22-PCS for ktub operational lease
	YMCA of Greater Seattle Organizational Overview
	Mission
	Past Performance
	Key Staff and Expertise
	Operational Plan
	Alignment with the City of Kirkland's Vision and Goals for KTUB
	Proposed Programs and Services (including depth, breadth, and scope of operations)
	Partner Programming
	If selected, the Y will work with the City and the current tenant, Studio East, to forge a partnership and facility operations plan.
	Staffing Plan
	Operating Budget
	Resources Requested from the City of Kirkland
	Proposed Facility Alterations
	Cooperative Relationship Building with City of Kirkland and Partner Agencies
	Diversity, Equity, Inclusion and Belonging
	References


